
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE RURAL RETREAT TOWN 
COUNCIL HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS ON 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 27, 2012, 7:00 P.M. 
 
Council Members Present: Mayor Timothy Litz; Vice-Mayor A. Keith Crigger; Ed Schaack; 

Dale Yontz; James P. “Sean” Viars 
     
Council Members Absent: Jerrell Hall; Peggy Hash 
 
Administration Present: Michael James, Town Manager; Lori Guynn, Clerk/Treasurer; 

Scott Mitchell, Police Chief  
 
Administration Absent: None 
 
Others Present: Tim Reeves – Wythe County Board of Supervisors; Madison 

Yontz; Dayton Yontz 
 
DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM 
 
Mayor Litz called the meeting to order and determined a quorum was present. 
 
INVOCATION  
 
The invocation was given by Rev. Ed Schaack. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Litz. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
A motion was made by Councilmember Yontz, seconded by Councilmember Schaack to approve 
the minutes of the November 13, 2012 regular meeting.  Councilmember Viars asked Town 
Manager James if he had followed up on the cat issue.  Town Manager James stated he had not 
had the opportunity.  Vice-Mayor Crigger asked Chief Mitchell if Wythe County would address 
the issue.  Chief Mitchell explained they won’t handle felines because they have no place to put 
them due to the shelter being for the town of Wytheville.  There being no additional discussion, 
the motion passed by a vote of four (4) for: Crigger, Schaack, Viars, Yontz; zero (0) against; two 
(2) absent: Hall, Hash. 
 
CITIZEN’S TIME    
 
NONE 
  
 
 



COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – NOVEMBER 27, 2012 – PAGE 2 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
 NONE 
 
POLICE REPORT 
 
Chief Mitchell stated the activity for November has been slow.  He added both he and the Wythe 
County Sheriff’s office are working to increase traffic enforcement with the holidays coming up.  
Mayor Litz asked if he had received any dog complaints recently.  Chief Mitchell responded he 
has had a complaint on Chinquapin Avenue but no others. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
DELINQUENT TAX COLLECTIONS – Town Manager James reported he and Clerk/Treasurer 
Guynn are continuing to work on this but due to work load it hasn’t been top priority. 
 
RURAL RETREAT DEPOT FOUNDATION UTILITY WAIVER REQUEST – At the last 
meeting a request was received from the Rural Retreat Depot Foundation to waive the 
connection fees for water and sewer, Town Manager James stated.  He referred to a quote 
attached to the town manager’s report outlining the cost for a bore under East Railroad Avenue 
to get the water service to the depot.  The quote for $750 was provided by Jim Branthoover 
owner of Advanced Building and Clearing, Inc. to complete the directional bore and to case the 
water line.  Town Manager James suggested asking the Depot Foundation to pay for the bore 
which will be lower than the connection fee.  He added the town’s staff can easily make the 
sewer connection because it is more accessible and will be at a lower cost.  Town Manager 
James stated the Council will need to make a decision on waiving the connection fees or asking 
the Foundation to pay for the bore.  Councilmember Yontz suggested asking Mr. Branthoover to 
waive the cost to bore for the line.  Town Manager James explained he had told Mr. Branthoover 
why the bore would need to be done so he reduced the quote.  Mayor Litz commented the 
Foundation should be notified of the options being considered and explain the town will set the 
meter at our expense and provide the sewer connection if the Council so chooses.  
Councilmember Viars asked how much the connection fee was.  Clerk/Treasurer replied the 
water connection is $1,000.  Vice-Mayor Crigger asked how much asphalt will be disturbed in 
providing water service.  Town Manager James stated he was unsure because we will need to dig 
out the sewer line to find out if it is connected in order to get a better idea.  He added we hope to 
get a camera to take a look at the lines and find out if it is connected to the building.  Vice-Mayor 
Crigger asked if he requested water and sewer for an unapproved lot is it the town’s 
responsibility to get service to the lot.  Town Manager James responded yes but a waiver in fees 
was requested.  Councilmember Yontz commented he is concerned with the Foundation making 
continuous requests for financial assistance.  Vice-Mayor Crigger asked what was done in the 
past for other non-profits and he referred to the school at the Rural Retreat Pentecostal Holiness 
Church.  Mayor Litz was unsure of the decision made.  Town Manager James stated the request 
was for a waiver of fees and the Council will need to make a decision on this request.  The 
consensus was to table this item again for further review. 



COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – NOVEMBER 27, 2012 – PAGE 3 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
DR. PEPPER LOT CONSULTING SERVICES – Town Manager James stated he had briefly 
mentioned the Dr. Pepper lot at the previous meeting and he had been in discussion on the use of 
the lot whether to create a drug store replica, park area, etc.  He contacted Thompson & Litton 
and discussed various ideas for a park area and he got plans from Councilmember Yontz on 
constructing a wall of honor on the lot.  Thompson & Litton was asked for a quote to provide 
preliminary architectural services to design a wall of honor, gazebo area and mural on the side of 
Jayne Hall’s building to commemorate Rural Retreat.  Town Manager James explained the quote 
was $3,774 and he asked the Council if they were interested in pursuing the use of the lot.  
Councilmember Yontz stated the reason the Wall of Honor Committee chose the location for the 
wall was because Dr. Charles T. Pepper was the first inductee and it was the location of the 
original drug store.  Vice-Mayor Crigger stated the ideas were good but he would like to see a 
larger area and this could tie in with the depot and the surrounding area.  He added his opinion 
was make this a town project only and to not include adjoining property owners so that we are 
not liable or responsible for others property.  A motion was made by Vice-Mayor Crigger to 
proceed with architectural services to be provided by Thompson & Litton for $3,774.  
Councilmember Yontz seconded the motion it was approved by a vote of four (4) for: Crigger, 
Schaack, Viars, Yontz; zero (0) against; two (2) absent: Hall, Hash. 
 
Vice-Mayor Crigger addressed the caboose located in the town flat.  Mayor Litz commented it is 
owned by the town.  Vice-Mayor Crigger concurred and added there may be an organization that 
would like to own the caboose. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
HERITAGE DAYS – Chairman Yontz stated a letter needed to be sent from the Mayor to the 
Wythe County Board of Supervisors requesting the $5,000 allocation for the 2012 Heritage Days 
festival.  He also asked that a letter requesting funding for the 2013 festival be sent in January 
and this letter be copied to Supervisors Reeves to ensure that it is received.  Chairman Yontz 
expressed his appreciation to Supervisor Reeves and the Board for their generous donation. 
 
FINANCE & APPROPRIATIONS – Clerk/Treasurer Guynn reported the miscommunication 
issues have been resolved and the audit should be issued in the coming weeks. 
 
PERSONNEL – Chairman Schaack reported the Committee had met to review the applications 
for the General Services Director.  He noted ten applications were received.  He added the 
applications were discussed and it would be Town Manager James’s decision on the hiring. 
 
TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
The following items were discussed and/or acted upon: 
 
OUT-OF-TOWN WATER PROJECT DIVISION IV (WATER PLANT ELECTRICAL 
IMPROVEMENTS) – The check valves arrived yesterday afternoon and were installed today.   



COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – NOVEMBER 27, 2012 – PAGE 4 
 
The contractor’s and the electrical engineer’s final work should be scheduled within two weeks.  
The technology has worked well on the first motor and pump and we anticipate an easy transition 
to being completely tied into variable frequency.  This project should be complete by mid-
December. 
 
OUT-OF-TOWN WATER PROJECT DIVISION III (Chinquapin & Lee Highway) – We have 
six connections remaining that will continue to be placed into the work schedule. 
 
TEA-21 PHASE VII SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENT PROJECT – The VDOT Bristol office is 
awaiting one last review of the final plans.  They will then be sent to Richmond with a request 
for authorization to bid.  We are expected to receive that authorization within two weeks of the 
plans arriving in Richmond. 
 
DHCD PLANNING GRANT – RURAL RETREAT DOWNTOWN BUSINESS DISTRICT – 
All required information has been sent to DHCD. 
 
DR. PEPPER LOT PROJECT – This item was previously discussed. 
 
RURAL RETREAT DEPOT – This item was previously discussed. 
 
GENERAL SERVICES DIRECTOR – I have reviewed the applications with the Personnel 
Committee and a suggestion has been given as to the applicant who will best suit the needs of the 
Town.  We will negotiate salary and announce the new hire within the week. 
 
WWTP DISINFECTION IMPROVEMENTS – The site engineer will be making a visit to the 
plant on Friday afternoon to finalize the design of the UV system.  Staff is still collecting all the 
information requested by DEQ and Virginia Resources Authority for the closing of the loan. 
 
CHRISTMAS LIGHTS – Staff is putting up the Christmas lights on the light poles in town this 
week.  The bulbs in all but four decorations have been replaced with LED bulbs.  
Councilmember Schaack asked if the installation of decorations was still outsourced.  Town 
Manager James stated it had been in the past but the town staff is now handling this. 
 
VACUUM TRUCK – We are looking at collecting quotes for a vacuum truck for the collection 
of leaves off the sidewalks in town and to prevent the leaves from getting into the drainage 
system.  We will also be exploring leaf collection as an added service to the citizens.  Council 
will be provided equipment cost proposals in the coming weeks.  Vice-Mayor Crigger asked if 
there was a need for a vacuum truck.  Town Manager James stated the truck will be needed as 
the sidewalk system expands. 
 
SHENTEL CABLE COMPANY – Representatives will be attending the next meeting to answer 
any questions that Council will have concerning the new franchise ordinance.  A public hearing 
will be held prior to considering issuing the franchise agreement. 
 



COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – NOVEMBER 27, 2012 – PAGE 5 
 
WEEKLY UPDATES – Councilmember Schaack expressed his appreciation to Town Manager 
James for the weekly email updates. 
 
TREASURER’S REPORT 
 
The bills for November 27, 2012 were read and approved. 
 
TALK OF THE TOWN 
 
Town Manager James is to attend the Talk of the Town radio program at the WYVE/WXBX 
radio station on Wednesday morning. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Prior to adjourning Clerk/Treasurer Guynn informed the Council that the town Christmas dinner 
had been scheduled for December 19th and will be held at the Rural Retreat Community Center.  
She also explained the town employees are conducting a Christmas Cheer program again this 
year and would like the Councilmember’s to participate.  The money collected will be used to 
purchase Christmas gifts for two children in the community. 
 
There being no additional business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned upon a motion by 
Councilmember Schaack.  The motion was duly seconded and approved. 
 
 
 
 
                 
 Mayor        
 
 
 
                
Clerk 
                        


